
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 6:00 P.M. MONDAY NOVEMBER 19, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Roll Call 

 

C. City Council Goal Setting Session 

 

D. Adjourn Goal Setting Session CITY COUNCIL Meeting will start immediately 

 following the Goal Setting Session, located in the City Council Chambers 

 

E.  Call to Order 

 

F. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call 

 

H. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
 

1. Larry Burger, Vice President with Speer Financial, Inc. – Tax Increment Finance 
Report – This report is delivered on an annual basis to keep the Mayor and Council 
up to date on the debt outstanding with the City.  This report changes annually by 
the amount of debt paid back, taken out of the change in City valuation.  The 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

remaining parts of the report help identify for City Administration what their TIF 
needs are in the next fiscal year and beyond based on their obligations 

2. GIS Implementation from Midland – Midland GIS, Implemented a Geographic 
Information System focused on correcting current problems in locating existing 
infrastructure and will be the basis for developing successful long term planning for 
investing for improvements, maintenance, and expansion management.  

3. The West Branch Public Library Annual Report is required to give an annual report 
to the city council including information on the condition of the library, number of 
items added, number circulated, amount of fines collected, and report of 
expenditure.   

 
I. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

J. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting November 5, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve the “Down Under located at 102 W. Main Street” Liquor License 

Renewal. 
3. Motion to Approve the Fire Department Officers for 2018-2019.  
4. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 

K. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Public Hearing: On the Proposed Amendment to the West Branch Zoning 
Code.  For the Consideration of Rezoning for the Meadows, Part 4. 

2. First Reading, Ordinance 760 – Rezoning that Certain Parcel of Real Property 
Located at the Meadows, Part 4 from R-1 Residence District to R-1 and R-2 
Residence Districts. 

3. Public Hearing: On the Proposed Amendment to the West Branch Zoning 
Code.  For the Consideration on the matter of Rezoning – Loethen Ridge 
Estates. 

4. First Reading, Ordinance 761 – Rezoning that Certain Parcel of Real Property 
Located at the Meadows, Part 4 from R-1 Residence District to R-1 and R-2 
Residence District. 

5. Public Hearing: Regarding the Consideration of Rezoning as requested by 
Cedar’s Edge Golf Course.     



 

 

6. First Reading, Ordinance 762 – Rezoning that Certain Parcel of Real Property 
Located at Cedar’s Edge Golf Course from A-1 Agricultural District to R-1 and 
R-2 Residence Districts. 

7. Resolution 1764 – Approving Annual Insurance Renewals with Wellmark Blue 
Cross Blue Shield of Iowa for health and dental insurance. 

8. Discussion Item: Regarding level of “Tax Rebate” support for Little Lights 
Project.   

9. Resolution 1748 – Consider Approving the Request of Acciona Windpower 
North America, LLC to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues. 

10. Resolution 1749 – A Consideration to Approve the Request of Casey’s 
Marketing Company to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment Revenues. 

11. Resolution1752 – Obligating Funds from the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund 
for the Payment of Annual Appropriation Tax Increment Financed Obligations 
in Fiscal Year 2020. 

12. Resolution 1765 - Approving Change Order #6 For Cubby Park Improvements 
“Not To Exceed” $19,650.00 Unless Frost Is Found To Be Four Inches Deep Then 
Cost Will Be Enhanced By Time And Materials. 

 
L. Reports 

 
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

M. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

N. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST TO GIVE PRESENTION TO CITY COUNCIL  
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 

 

Presentation Item: Larry Burger, Vice President with Speer Financial, Inc. – Tax 
Increment Finance Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This report is delivered on an annual basis to keep the Mayor and Council up to date on 

the debt outstanding with the City.  This report changes annually by the amount of debt 

paid back, taken out of the change in City valuation.  The remaining parts of the report 

help identify for City Administration what their TIF needs are in the next fiscal year and 

beyond based on their obligations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive the Presentation 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Guest Speaker, Presentation and Proclamation 1 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

REQUEST TO GIVE PRESENTION TO CITY COUNCIL 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

Presentation Item: Midland GIS – Project Closeout Presentation. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director  

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
Identified by City Council in its “2018-2019 Goal Setting” as a Top priority.  Geographic 

Information Systems (GIS) was thought to address System focused on correcting current 

problems in locating existing infrastructure and will be the basis for developing successful 

long term planning for investing for improvements, maintenance, and expansion 

management.  GIS programs are only as successful as the method used to maintain them and we 

believe every client should have a reliable, easy to use GIS. That is why we provide Integrity™, 

powered by Geo cortex®, our web-based software solution to access, edit, maintain, and analyze 

your GIS data. Built on Esri Technology, this intuitive program has built-in workflows to support 

daily operations and asset management. The best part, Integrity™ is easy to use and allows users 

to access their GIS data on any computer or mobile device, anytime, anywhere. 
 
We understand that one size does not fit all. Our team of consulting professionals assess internal 

processes, audit current GIS data and software architecture. At Midland GIS, we focus our design 

on maximizing investment, correcting current problems, and developing a successful long term 

plan for implementation and management processes in your organization. Our consulting expertise 

includes; data analysis, system design, needs assessment, geodatabase design, GIS implementation 

and management process analysis. 
 
I will cover the basic functionality of the website, and show how easy it is to navigate thru the 

website. Some of the main features will be the county parcel information that is accessible for 

staff. I will show the accuracy of the water, and sanitary sewer and the attributes. I will also talk 

about the editing function but not edit anything in the system since it is live. 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive the Presentation 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Guest Speaker, Presentation and Proclamation 2 



 

 

 

 
 

 

REQUEST TO GIVE PRESENTION TO CITY COUNCIL 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

Presentation Item: Presentation of West Branch Public Library Annual Report and 

Strategic Plan goals. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Nick Shimmin, Library Director 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The West Branch Public Library is required to give an annual report to the city council 

including information on the condition of the library, number of items added, number 

circulated, amount of fines collected, and report of expenditure.  To this end, an Annual 

Report document is created and given as part of a presentation to the city council.  The 

document should be included on subsequent pages.   

 

One of the bigger parts of the year is the creation of a new Strategic Plan, the goals of which 

I would like to present as part of this presentation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Receive the Presentation 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Guest Speaker, Presentation and Proclamation 3 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               November 5, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      7:00 p.m. 
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin then 

invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Roll call: Council members:  Colton Miller, Jordan Ellyson, Brian Pierce, Jodee Stoolman and Nick Goodweiler 

were present.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond 

Jones, Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Public Works Director Matt Goodale, 

Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Police Chief Mike Horihan, Fire 

Chief Kevin Stoolman, City Attorney Kevin Olson and City Engineer Dave Schechinger. 
 
GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Russell gave an update on Christmas Past 2018 planning.  She said this year’s event will be held on December 

7th and 8th and would include much of the same activities as in past years.  Russell said the only issue at the time 

was the lighting of the Christmas tree in the Village Green due to wet ground conditions. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment.   
 
APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to approve meeting minutes for City Council meeting October 15, 2018. 

Motion to approve the appointment of Jim Farmer as the Cedar County Representative for the West 

Branch Library Board. 

Resolution 1755 – Hiring Nevin Tucker as a Water / Wastewater Operator for the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, and setting the salary for the position for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 

Resolution 1754 – approving West Branch Community School District High School Concession Stand 

Site Plan. 

Resolution 1760 –approving the contribution of $3,000 to the Community Development Group (CDG) for 

the purpose of horse drawn carriage rides during the Christmas Past Festival. 

Motion to approve the Claims Report. 
 
November Claims Paid  
EXPENDITURES     11/5/2018  
ACTION SEWER & SEPTIC SERV    TELEVISE SEWER LINE    1,243.75  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS     286.69  
BARNHART'S CUSTOM SERVICES    STREET LIGHT REPAIR    350.00  
CAJ ENTERPRISES INC     BERANEK PARK SHELTER   91.35  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIES    WATER SOFTENER SERVICE   23.20  
CY'S TREE SERVICE     TREE TRIMMING    4,940.00  
D&R PEST CONTROL     PEST CONTROL    70.00  
HD CLINE COMPANY     REPAIR PARTS    273.84  
HOLIDAY INN DES MOINES AIR    LODGING     201.60  
IMWCA      IMWCA     2,024.00  
IOWA ONE CALL     LOCATION SERVICE    72.00  
IOWA PRISON INDUSTRIES    FURNITURE    1,512.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.    RECYCLING SEP 2018    4,250.15  
JULIA HIME      VIDEOGRAPY SERVICES   150.00  
KIRKWOOD COMM. COLLEGE    TUITION-WASTEWATER GR 3/4   150.00  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS   1,274.78  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC     VACUUM OUT CURB STOP   150.00  
MEDIACOM      CABLE SERVICE    41.90  
OASIS ELECTRIC LLC     SERVICE CALL-LIBRARY   157.34  
OVERDRIVE INC     AUDIOBOOKS    624.77  
PARKSIDE SERVICE     TIRE REPAIR    26.17  

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL IN    PEST CONTROL-CITY OFFICE   95.18  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC    LAB ANALYSIS    970.00  
QUILL CORP      OFFICE SUPPLIES    147.57  
RESTORATION PRO 24 LLC    EMERGENCY CLEANING SERVICE   3,721.81  
RIVER PRODUCTS COMPANY INC    BERANEK PARK SHELTER   68.73  
SPRINGDALE AGENCY     INSURANCE    85.00  
THOMAS HEATING & AIR LLC    FURNACE REPAIR    450.00  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHOOL   BUS SERVICE    2,706.18  
WEST BRANCH FIREFIGHTERS    SUPPLIES, TRAINING, TRAVEL   404.36  
WEST BRANCH FORD     VEHICLE REPAIR    228.47  
TOTAL           26,790.84  
  
PAYROLL      10/19/2018    53,411.32  
PAYROLL (SICK TIME PAYOUT)    10/25/2018    1,718.26  
PAYROLL      11/2/2018     41,019.03  
  
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
  
BOCWAY INVESTMENTS LLC    BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT   1,314.07  
BP AMOCO      VEHICLE FUEL    815.63  
BUSINESS RADIO SALES     SUPPLIES     38.29  
CJ COOPER & ASSOCIATES    DRUG TESTING    69.30  
KIWANIS      MEMBERSHIP DUES    100.00  
KNOCHE, REBECCA     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES   150.00  
LYNCH, RYAN OR LINDSEY    BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT   1,102.07  
BOWMAN, MATT     RENTAL REFUND    100.00  
UPS      SHIPPING     20.92  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD    TRAINING, TRAVEL EXPENSES, SUPPLIES  1,500.06  
VEENSTRA & KIMM     WASTEWATER TREATMENT-FACILITY STUDY  7,701.45  
WALMART      SUPPLIES     245.09  
WEST BRANCH TIMES     ADVERTISING/LEGAL PUBLICATIONS  1,198.79  
WEX BANK      VEHICLE FUEL    1,244.31  
AMAZON      BOOKS & PROGRAM SUPPLIES   367.96  
LESLIE BRICK      MILEAGE & TRAVEL EXPENSE   194.62  
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    CLEANING SERVICE    546.00  
REDMOND JONES II     TRAVEL EXPENSES    912.39  
VERIZON WIRELESS     WIRELESS SERVICE    833.13    
TOTAL           18,454.08  
  
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES         141,393.53  
  
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND    62,774.16  
022   CIVIC CENTER    253.04  
031   LIBRARY     14,494.09  
036   TORT LIABILITY    2,005.41  
110   ROAD USE TAX    9,947.72  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   18,089.59  
600   WATER FUND    12,704.23  
610   SEWER FUND    20,546.54  
740   STORM WATER UTILITY     578.75  
  
GRAND TOTAL    141,393.53 
 
Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, 

Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Resolution 1756 – Authorizing the City Administrator to accept a $10,000 “money back guarantee” wastewater 

treatment proposal from Baldridge Environmental, Inc. and an additional not to exceed amount of $4,000 for a 

city owned shed to house the wastewater treatment unit. /Move to action. 

Todd Baldridge, Baldridge Environmental explained his company’s method for treating wastewater by using 

bacteria enzymes from mangroves roots from Thailand and depositing them into the lagoons.  The bacteria 

multiples very quickly and ‘eats’ the sludge from the lagoons where large amounts of ammonia and E.coli are 

produced.  By reducing the sludge, ammonia and E.coli levels will decrease to almost untraceable.  Baldridge 



 

 

said he worked with Wayland, Iowa who uses his solution and they have been very satisfied with their results.  

Baldridge added that he is a new resident in West Branch and felt compelled to help the City save a lot of money.  

Council member Miller, as part of the wastewater task force met with Baldridge and felt confident in the expected 

results.   

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1756.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, Stoolman, Pierce, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Public Hearing: To dispose of real property known as “Outlot A” to Lynch Heights. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:22 p.m. and hearing no comments, closed the public hearing at 7:23 p.m. 
 
Resolution 1757 – Selling property known as “Outlot A” to Lynch Heights. /Move to action. 

Laughlin explained that Outlot A was part of the subdivision park space requirement of the developer to provide to 

the City.  However after further consideration by staff, the property was deemed as not desirable for public use.  

Lynch approached the City and asked to purchase Outlot A back to sell to an adjacent property owner who was 

interested in purchasing the property.  Laughlin stated that the proceeds from this sale would be put toward other 

park projects. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1757.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, Ellyson, 

Miller, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Public Hearing: Disposal of real property known as Lot A of Lot 4, Rummells Commercial Subdivision, West 

Branch, Iowa. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:26 pm and hearing no comments, closed the public hearing at 7:27 p.m. 
 
Resolution 1758 – Approving the Disposal of certain real property to Croell Redi-Mix, Inc. /Move to action. 

Olson explained that this is a revised resolution amending Resolution 1696, correcting the property known as Lot 

B, of Lot 4 Rummells Commercial Subdivision to Lot A, Lot 4 of Rummells Commercial Subdivision. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1758.  AYES:  Pierce, Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Motion to set a date for a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning requested by Cedar’s Edge Golf Course. 

/Move to action. 

Motion to set a date for a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning requested for Loethen Ridge Estates. /Move 

to action. 

Motion to set a date for a Public Hearing: for the Notice of Rezoning, requested by KLM for Meadows, Phase 4. 

/Move to action. 

Laughlin requested to combine the motion to set a date for the public hearings into one combined motion and set 

November 19, 2018 for those hearings. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stoolman.  AYES:  Miller, Stoolman, Pierce, Goodweiler, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  

Motion carried.   
 
Discussion: Regarding level of “Tax Rebate” support for Little Lights Project.   

Laughlin introduced the tax rebate proposal ranging from 7% to 20% of the estimated 1.5 million dollar project.  

Laughlin said he was in favor of a 10% rebate and asked the Council their opinion.  Finance Officer Gordon 

Edgar asked to address the Council.  Edgar said he was not in favor of the rebate and asked the Council to 

consider the needs of the residents before offering a tax rebate to a private business.  Edgar expressed his concern 

with the City having adequate funds available for projects such as the College Street Bridge, water main upgrades 

for the east side of town, a potential need for a new sewer plant and five, one million dollar debt payments over 

the next five years for current debt.  Edgar stated that businesses should want to come to West Branch and be a 

part of the city, not take from it.  The Council expressed mixed feelings on the subject.  Pierce disagreed with 

Edgar’s comments and felt that the current situation wasn’t creating any tax dollars, so rebating what the City 

doesn’t currently get does not affect the bottom line.  Goodweiler asked what the amount of rebate would actually 

be, but those exact numbers were not available.  Miller asked Morris-Vincent what she was looking for and she 

responded that 10% would be nice, but said she would like more.  Laughlin again asked for a consensus from the 



 

 

Council on the 10% rebate option.  Laughlin, Pierce and Goodweiler were okay with 10%, but Ellyson, Miller and 

Stoolman would like more information before deciding. 
 
Resolution 1759 – Amending Resolution 1461 to adjust the public contribution by the amount of an additional 

$2,772 for public improvement in Meadows Sub-division. /Move to action. 

Jones explained that the prior resolution 1461 was based on engineer’s estimates and approved by the City 

Council previously.  The completed project costs were higher than expected and the difference was requested by  

KLM, Inc. who paid for the repair.  Laughlin agreed with the extra costs but said there was still grading issues 

that needed to be completed before the amount was reimbursed.  Brad Larson said the issued would be checked 

out and resolved as quickly as possible. 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1759.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Pierce, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Discussion Item: Regarding authorizing $3,500 for the expense of design for an Electric Vehicle Charging Station.  

Laughlin said he received an engineer’s estimate for designing the electric vehicle charging station for $3500.00.  

Laughlin said he felt it was a little high and the engineered agreed to design it for $3000.00.  Laughlin said the site 

for the charging station would be located in the Enlow parking lot.  Laughlin said the cost to the city would be 

approximately $3.00 per vehicle.  Goodweiler said he didn’t feel that this was a priority for West Branch and was 

not willing to support the expense.  Other council members agreed and decided to table the request indefinitely. 
 
Resolution 1753 – Approving Little Lights Site Plan for Community / Event Center at Cedar’s Edge Golf Course. 

/ Move to action. 

Brian Boelk, Axiom Consultants presented the revised site plan to the Council that now shows the Little Lights 

Event Center as a free standing building that will be constructed on a separate plot owned by Little Lights (Lot 

26).  Boelk said that once this plan was developed, it was determined that event centers were not listed as a 

permitted use in the A-1 District.  Because of this, a Special Exception was asked of the Zoning Board of 

Adjustment and approved on October 23, 2018.  Boelk said the golf course club house would share a parking lot 

with Little Lights and a storm water detention basin (wet bottom) would be constructed to the east of the two 

buildings in the county portion of the golf course. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1753.  AYES:  Pierce, Goodweiler, Miller, 

Stoolman, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1761 – Accepting the proposal and approving an agreement with “Swift and Swift LLC.” for Nuisance 

Abatement Services relating to 203 E. Green Street and other properties as deemed appropriate. /Move to action. 

Jones said he contacted four vendors to provide nuisance property clean-up activities and received proposals from 

two.  Swift & Swift presented the lower cost option for providing the services.  Jones also said he was working on 

developing a more streamlined nuisance process to be able to address issues more quickly. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1761.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Ellyson, Miller, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1751 – Approving the submission of the City of West Branch FY 2017-2018 Annual Urban Renewal 

Report. /Move to action. 

Motion by Pierce, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1751.  AYES:  Pierce, Miller, Stoolman, Goodweiler, 

Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1748 – Consider approving the request of Acciona Windpower North America, LLC to rebate a portion 

of Tax Increment Revenues. /Move to action. 

Miller questioned the wording of the resolution and felt it was misleading and requested clarification.  It was 

determined the wording of the resolution should be worded to accept the request from Acciona for considering the 

tax rebate and the Council would vote accordingly.  This resolution will be brought back to the next meeting with 

revisions. 

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to table Resolution 1748.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, Stoolman, Pierce, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 



 

 

Resolution 1749 – A consideration to approve the request of Casey’s Marketing Company to rebate a portion of Tax 

Increment Revenues. /Move to action. 

No action was taken on this resolution as the City Attorney had not heard from Casey’s on the City Council’s 

proposal. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson to table Resolution 1749.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Miller, 

Stoolman, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
  
Resolution 1750 – Authorizing an internal advance to the College Street and 2nd Street Improvements Project Capital 

Fund. /Move to action. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1750.  AYES:  Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman, Pierce, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1752 – Obligating funds from the Urban Renewal Tax Revenue Fund for the payment of annual 

appropriation Tax Increment Financed Obligations in Fiscal Year 2020. /Move to action. 

City Attorney Olson said this resolution would need to be tabled due to the tabling of Resolutions 1748 and 1749.   

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to table Resolution 1752.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, Stoolman, Pierce, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1762 – Approving partial pay estimate #7 in the amount of $113,936.67 to Needham Excavating Inc. for 

the Cubby Park Improvements Project. /Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1762.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, Miller, 

Ellyson, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
Resolution 1763 – Approving change order #5 for a date extension for the Cubby Park Improvements Project. /Move 

to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1763.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Pierce, Stoolman, 

Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones shared two renderings from IDOT for the trail tunnel under I-80 that will be constructed as part of their lane 

widening project.  Both renderings included a limestone wall and fencing, however one option was to include faces 

of Herbert & Lou Hoover with the trail name etched in the stone.  The Council concluded they liked the Hoover 

Trail name, but not the faces to be included. 
 
Jones also reminded the Council that the annual goal setting would be scheduled for November19th.  The Council 

requested the goal session be prior to the regular meeting and set 6:00 p.m. for the session. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

No additional report. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

Brick asked if the Council would consider changing to the new cart service provided by Johnson County Refuse.  

She said other surrounding cities have moved to the new system and said she would request additional information 

from the service provider on pricing.  Brick also said that pet registrations could now be done through the city’s 

website and will advertised to encourage more registrations. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

No additional comments. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Miller, second by Goodweiler.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 9:19 p.m. 

 



 

 

  

                             _________________________________________  

                                             Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the “Down Under located at 102 W. Main 
Street” Liquor License Renewal. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) with Brew Pub and Sunday Sales 

privileges for The Down Under, located at 102 W. Main Street.   

 

Renewal is effective December 1, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve to Approve Fire Department Officers for 2018-

2019. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 15, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The West Branch Fire Department annually votes for Officers on a variety of positions for 

the upcoming year.  On Wednesday, November 14, 2018 the attached list represents the 

elected Officers to the West Branch Fire Department. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

WEST BRANCH FIRE & RESCUE 

P.O. Box 218  105 S. Second Street West Branch, IA 52358 

Phone 319-643-2110 Fax 319-643-3293 

Emergencies Dial 911 

 

2018-2019 Officers 

 
Chief- Kevin Stoolman 

 
1st Assistant- Mike Kusick 

 
2nd Assistant- Tanya Havlik Smith 

 
President- Jose Gongora 

 
Secretary- Rae Ann Hosier 

 
Treasurer- Chad Schutte 

 
Training Officer- Neil Gerot  

 
Trustee 1st Year- Ryan Jennings 

 
Trustee 2nd Year- Andy Hosier 

 
Trustee 3rd Year- Trent Hanson 

 
Medical Officer- Sandy Heick  

 
Assistant Medical Officer- Mikayla Hunter 

 

Scene Captains  

   1. Matt Tisinger      2. Ben Barrett  

 3. Logan Cilek     4. Ben Litscher 

 

191- Captains 

1. Ben Barrett      2. Logan Cilek  

 

192 Captain- Matt Tisinger 

 

195- Captain / Cub Cadet- Ben Litscher 

 

196- Captain – Craig Cochran/Levi Kleinmeyer 

 

197- Captain – Nevin Tucker  

 

199- Captain – Jace Gongora  

 

Cleaning- 3 Department Members Each Month 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: On the Proposed Amendment to the West Branch 

Zoning Code.  For the Consideration of Rezoning for the Meadows, 

Part 4.  

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, at the Council Chambers at 110 Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa, 

at 7:00 o'clock P.M., on Monday, November 19th, 2018.  Said public hearing shall be to 

consider the proposed rezoning of eighteen (18) lots from R-1 to R-2, Lots 22 through 39 of 

the following described parcel:  
 
THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4, BEING PART OF PARCEL G, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE 
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE, IN THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST 
FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE NORTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼ ) OF THE SOUTHWEST 
FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, 
CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 32 OF THE MEADOWS 
SUBDIVISION PART II, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, THENCE N18º59'30”W, 119.27 FEET; 
THENCE N86º38'50”E, 14.10 FEET; THENCE N3º21'11”W, 138.68 FEET; THENCE N3º10”34”W, 60.00; THENCE 
S86º46'30”W, 19.31 FEET; THENCE N3º20'32”W, 135.00 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL G; THENCE ALONG 
SAID NORTH LINE S86º46'30”W, 758.80 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF CEDAR JOHNSON ROAD; THENCE 
ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE S01º19'13”E, 165.54 FEET; THENCE N86º40'45”E, 347.57 FEET; THENCE 
S03º21”10”E, 57.06 FEET; THENCE 120.05 FEET ALONG A 182.99 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EAST (CHORD 
BEARING S22º08'48”E, 117.91 FEET); THENCE S40º55'59”E, 635.23 FEET; THENCE N49º03'28”W, 215.06 FEET TO THE 
WEST LINE OF SAID MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART II, THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF SAID PLAT N32º16'00”W, 
292.73 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

 YOU ARE FURTHER NOTIFIED that the public is invited to make comment, 

either written or oral, at the time and place listed above.  Further information about this 

matter can be obtained by contacting the Office of the City Clerk.   

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE 

WEST BRANCH ZONING CODE. 

 

 

 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the West 

Branch City Council in the Council Chambers at the City Office, located at 110 N. Poplar 

Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, November 19, 2018.   

 

The public hearing will discuss the proposed rezoning of eighteen (18) lots from R-1 to R-

2, Lots 22 through 39 of the following described parcel: 

 

THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4, BEING PART OF PARCEL G, AS RECORDED IN 
PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE, IN THE 
SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL 
QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE NORTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼ ) OF THE 
SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, 
RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED 
AS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 32 OF THE MEADOWS 
SUBDIVISION PART II, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, 
THENCE N18º59'30”W, 119.27 FEET; THENCE N86º38'50”E, 14.10 FEET; THENCE 
N3º21'11”W, 138.68 FEET; THENCE N3º10”34”W, 60.00; THENCE S86º46'30”W, 
19.31 FEET; THENCE N3º20'32”W, 135.00 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 
PARCEL G; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S86º46'30”W, 758.80 FEET TO THE 
EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF CEDAR JOHNSON ROAD; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST 
RIGHT OF WAY LINE S01º19'13”E, 165.54 FEET; THENCE N86º40'45”E, 347.57 
FEET; THENCE S03º21”10”E, 57.06 FEET; THENCE 120.05 FEET ALONG A 182.99 
FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EAST (CHORD BEARING S22º08'48”E, 117.91 
FEET); THENCE S40º55'59”E, 635.23 FEET; THENCE N49º03'28”W, 215.06 FEET TO 
THE WEST LINE OF SAID MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART II, THENCE ALONG SAID 
WEST LINE OF SAID PLAT N32º16'00”W, 292.73 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 

 All interested persons are invited to attend these meetings and be heard on the 

aforementioned proposed adoption of the amendment.  Further information regarding 

same may be obtained by contacting the West Branch Deputy City Clerk. 

 

 

/s/ Leslie Brick 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

by West Branch City Council 

 

 



 

 

 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading, Ordinance 760 – Rezoning that Certain Parcel of 

Real Property Located at the Meadows, Part 4 from R-1 Residence 

District to R-1 and R-2 Residence Districts. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve 1st Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 2 

First Reading of Ordinance 760, rezoning a portion of The Meadows, Part 4 from R-1 to 

R-2. 

 



 

 

Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, 110 N. Poplar Street, P.O. Box 218, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319)643-5888 

 

ORDINANCE 760 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE MEADOWS, PART 4 FROM R-1 RESIDENCE 

DISTRICT TO R-1 AND R-2 RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM Investments, Inc. (“KLM”) has petitioned the City of West 

Branch for a zoning district amendment for properties located in the Meadows 

Subdivisions, said parcel being legally described as:   

 

 THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4, BEING PART OF PARCEL G, AS 

RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER'S 

OFFICE, IN THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE 

SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE NORTHWEST 

FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼ ) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL 

QUARTER (SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, IN 

THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 32 OF THE MEADOWS 

SUBDIVISION PART II, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH, THENCE N18º59'30”W, 119.27 FEET; THENCE N86º38'50”E, 14.10 FEET; 

THENCE N3º21'11”W, 138.68 FEET; THENCE N3º10”34”W, 60.00; THENCE 

S86º46'30”W, 19.31 FEET; THENCE N3º20'32”W, 135.00 FEET TO THE NORTH 

LINE OF SAID PARCEL G; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S86º46'30”W, 

758.80 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF CEDAR JOHNSON ROAD; 

THENCE ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE S01º19'13”E, 165.54 FEET; 

THENCE N86º40'45”E, 347.57 FEET; THENCE S03º21”10”E, 57.06 FEET; THENCE 

120.05 FEET ALONG A 182.99 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE EAST (CHORD 

BEARING S22º08'48”E, 117.91 FEET); THENCE S40º55'59”E, 635.23 FEET; THENCE 

N49º03'28”W, 215.06 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID MEADOWS 

SUBDIVISION PART II, THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF SAID PLAT 

N32º16'00”W, 292.73 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (the “Parcel). 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM has requested that a portion of the Parcel be rezoned to be 

located in an  R-2 Residence District, in place of an R-1 Residence District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended the City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa : 

 



 

 

 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show that a portion of the Parcel being located in a R-2 Residence District in place of R-1 

Residence District. 

  

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

publication as by law provided. 

 

 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 

this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this 

ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2018. 

 

 First Reading:  November 19, 2018 

 Second Reading: December 3, 2018 

 Third Reading: December 17, 2018 

 

 

 

      

 ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:________________________________ 

    Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: On the Proposed Amendment to the West Branch 

Zoning Code.  For the Consideration on the matter of Rezoning – 

Loethen Ridge Estates. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk, Leslie Brick 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission has approved and held a public hearing on the matter 

of rezoning Parcel A, formerly known as Pedersen Valley, Part 4 from R-1 to R-2.   

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission has approved a recommendation to the City Council 

for their approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE 

WEST BRANCH ZONING CODE. 

 

 

 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the West 

Branch City Council in the Council Chambers at the City Office, located at 110 N. Poplar 

Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, November 19, 2018.   

 

The public hearing will discuss the proposed rezoning from R-1 to R-2 of the following 

described parcel: 

 

PARCEL "A" BEING DESCRIBED AS: 
BEING THAT PART OF LOT B IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER ¼ (SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, 
TOWNSHIP 79, RANGE 4 WEST LYING NORTH OF PEDERSEN VALLEY PART 4 AND  SOUTH OF 
CEDARS EDGE GOLF COURSE, AND PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE ¼), ALL IN THE CITY 
OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF LOT 82 OF PEDERSEN VALLEY PART 4, AN OFFICIAL PLAT IN THE CITY OF WEST 
BRANCH, THENCE N00° 51' 11"E, 331.84 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF GREEN VIEW ESTATES , 
AN OFFICIAL PLAT IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE N86° 39' 
40”E, 1083.46 FEET; THENCE S01° 19' 16”E, 319.75 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
PEDERSEN VALLEY PART 4, THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S88° 40' 44”W, 180.00 FEET; 
THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S01° 19' 16”E, 50.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE 
S88° 40' 44”W, 915.38 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 8.56 
ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. 
 

 All interested persons are invited to attend these meetings and be heard on the 

aforementioned proposed adoption of the amendment.  Further information regarding 

same may be obtained by contacting the West Branch Deputy City Clerk. 

 

 

/s/ Leslie Brick 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

by West Branch City Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading, Ordinance 761 – Rezoning that Certain Parcel of 

Real Property Located at the Meadows, Part 4 from R-1 Residence 

District to R-1 and R-2 Residence District. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
First Reading of Ordinance 761, rezoning Loethen Ridge Estates, (formerly known as 

Pedersen Valley, Part4) from R-1 to R-2. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve 1st Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, 110 N. Poplar Street, P.O. Box 218, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319)643-5888 

 

ORDINANCE 761 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT PEDERSEN VALLEY, PART 4 FROM R-1 TO R-2 

RESIDENCE DISTRICT. 

 

 WHEREAS, IWB, LLC (“IWB”) has petitioned the City of West Branch for a 

zoning district amendment for properties located in the Pederson Valley subdivision, said 

parcel being legally described as:   

 

 BEING THAT PART OF LOT B IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER ¼ (SW ¼) 

OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 79, RANGE 4 WEST LYING NORTH OF PEDERSEN 

VALLEY PART 4 AND SOUTH OF CEDARS EDGE GOLF COURSE, AND PART OF 

THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE ¼), ALL IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, 

CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER OF LOT 82 OF PEDERSEN VALLEY PART 4, AN OFFICIAL PLAT IN 

THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, THENCE N00° 51' 11"E, 331.84 FEET TO THE 

SOUTH LINE OF GREEN VIEW ESTATES , AN OFFICIAL PLAT IN THE CITY OF 

WEST BRANCH, THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE N86° 39' 40”E, 1083.46 

FEET; THENCE S01° 19' 16”E, 319.75 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 

SAID PEDERSEN VALLEY PART 4, THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S88° 40' 

44”W, 180.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S01° 19' 16”E, 50.00 

FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE S88° 40' 44”W, 915.38 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING. DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 8.56 ACRES AND IS 

SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD (the “Parcel”). 

 

 WHEREAS, IWB has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in an R-2 

Residence  District, in place of an R-1 Residence District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended the City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa : 

 

 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show the Parcel being located in a R-2 Residence District in place of R-1 Residence 

District. 

  

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

publication as by law provided.  



 

 

 

 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 

this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this 

ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2018. 

 

 First Reading:  November 19, 2018 

 Second Reading: December 3, 2018 

 Third Reading: December 17, 2018 

 

 

 

      

 ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:________________________________ 

    Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: Regarding the Consideration of Rezoning as 

requested by Cedar’s Edge Golf Course. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Jerry Sexton, owner of Cedar’s Edge Golf Course has requested that a portion of the golf 

course be rezoned from A-1 to R-1 and R-2.  The new subdivision will have 16 R-1 lots and 

9 R-2 lots.  The Planning & Zoning Commission held a Public Hearing on October 16, 2018 

and approved a recommendation to the City Council hearing no objections from residents, 

staff or commission members.  Planning & Zoning also approved the Preliminary Plat for 

this new subdivision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open Public Hearing / Close Public Hearing 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 
 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE 

WEST BRANCH ZONING CODE. 

 

 

 YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that a public hearing will be held by the West 

Branch City Council in the Council Chambers at the City Office, located at 110 N. Poplar 

Street in West Branch, IA at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, November 19, 2018.   

 

The public hearing will discuss the proposed rezoning of twenty five (25) lots from A-1 to 

R-1 and R-2, of the following described parcels: 

 

Legal description R-1:  BEING PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 79 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST 
OF THE 5TH P.M, CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 
BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) 
THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER N01º02'17”W, 
644.68 FEET; THENCE N88º57'43”E, 158.00 FEET; THENCE S01º02'17”E, 445.44 FEET; 
THENCE N88º57'43”E, 24.74 FEET; THENCE N43º02'35”E, 277.14 FEET; THENCE 
N88º57'43”E, 141.44 FEET; THENCE S55º39'59”E, 149.13 FEET; THENCE S20º07'32”E, 
153.79 FEET; THENCE S69º52'29”W, 348.32 FEET; THENCE S03º13'20”E, 79.95 FEET; 
THENCE S86º43'55”W, 193.71 FEET; THENCE S03º09'26”E, 40.96 FEET; THENCE 
S86º42'09”W, 439.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. DESCRIBED PARCEL 
CONTAINS 5.76 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF 
RECORD. 

      AND 
 

Legal description R-2:  BEING PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 79 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST 
OF THE 5TH P.M, CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) 
THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER N01º02'17”W, 
644.68 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING N01º02'17”W, 
495.00 FEET; THENCE N88º57'43”W, 343.00 FEET; THENCE S01º02'17”E, 495.00 FEET; 
THENCE S88º57'43”W, 343.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. DESCRIBED 
PARCEL CONTAINS 3.90 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS 
OF RECORD. 

 

 All interested persons are invited to attend these meetings and be heard on the 

aforementioned proposed adoption of the amendment.  Further information regarding 

same may be obtained by contacting the West Branch Deputy City Clerk. 

 

 

/s/ Leslie Brick 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

by West Branch City Council 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading, Ordinance 762 – Rezoning that Certain Parcel of 

Real Property Located at Cedar’s Edge Golf Course from A-1 

Agricultural District to R-1 and R-2 Residence Districts. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
IWB, LLC has purchased approximately 8.6 acres (formerly known as Pedersen Valley, 

Part 4), now Loethen Ridge Estates and has requested that it be rezoned from R-1 to R-2.   

The Planning & Zoning Commission held a Public Hearing on October 16, 2018 and 

approved a recommendation to the City Council hearing no objections from residents, staff 

or commission members.  Planning & Zoning also approved the Preliminary Plat for this 

new subdivision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve 1st Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:       

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, 110 N. Poplar Street, P.O. Box 218, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319)643-5888 

 

ORDINANCE 762 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT CEDAR’S EDGE GOLF COURSE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 AND R-2 RESIDENCE DISTRICTS. 

 

 WHEREAS, Sexton Construction (“Sexton”) have petitioned the City of West 

Branch for a zoning district amendment for properties adjacent to Cedar’s Edge Golf 

Course, said parcels being legally described as:   

 

R-1 REZONING: BEING PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW ¼) 

OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 79 

NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M, CITY OF WEST BRANCH, 

CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: BEGINNING AT THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) 

THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER 

N01º02'17”W, 644.68 FEET; THENCE N88º57'43”E, 158.00 FEET; THENCE 

S01º02'17”E, 445.44 FEET; THENCE N88º57'43”E, 24.74 FEET; THENCE 

N43º02'35”E, 277.14 FEET; THENCE N88º57'43”E, 141.44 FEET; THENCE 

S55º39'59”E, 149.13 FEET; THENCE S20º07'32”E, 153.79 FEET; THENCE 

S69º52'29”W, 348.32 FEET; THENCE S03º13'20”E, 79.95 FEET; THENCE 

S86º43'55”W, 193.71 FEET; THENCE S03º09'26”E, 40.96 FEET; THENCE 

S86º42'09”W, 439.64 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. DESCRIBED 

PARCEL CONTAINS 5.76 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND 

RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. (PARCEL #1) 

 

AND  

 

R-2 REZONING: BEING PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW ¼) 

OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 79 

NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M, CITY OF WEST BRANCH, 

CEDAR COUNTY IOWA DESCRIBED AS: COMMENCING AT THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) 

THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER 

N01º02'17”W, 644.68 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE 

CONTINUING N01º02'17”W, 495.00 FEET; THENCE N88º57'43”W, 343.00 

FEET; THENCE S01º02'17”E, 495.00 FEET; THENCE S88º57'43”W, 343.00 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 

3.90 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF 

RECORD.  (PARCEL #2) 

 

 WHEREAS, Sexton has requested that the Parcel #1 be rezoned to be located in an 

R-1 Residence District, in place of an A-1 Agricultural District; and 

 



 

 

 WHEREAS, Sexton has requested that Parcel #2 be rezoned to be located in an R-

2 Residence District, in place of an A-1 Agricultural District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended the City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa: 

 

 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show the Parcel #1 being located in a R-1 Residence District in place of A-1 Agricultural 

District and Parcel #2 being located in an R-2 Residence District in place of A-1 

Agricultural District. 

  

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

publication as by law provided. 

 

 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 

this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this 

ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2018. 

 

 First Reading:  November 19, 2018 

 Second Reading: December 3, 2018 

 Third Reading: December 17, 2018 

 

 

 

      

 ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:________________________________ 

    Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk   

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1764 – Approving Annual Insurance Renewals with 

Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Iowa for health and dental 

insurance. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  November 16, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield health and dental insurance program has 

“grandfather” status which allows the city to continue the high quality insurance program 

the employees have enjoyed for the past several years.  The health insurance premium for 

next year will decline about 1% from the current premium.  There will be no change in the 

dental insurance premium. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1764 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ANNUAL INSURANCE RENEWALS WITH 

WELLMARK BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF IOWA FOR HEALTH AND 

DENTAL INSURANCE. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa received insurance renewal quotations 

from Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Iowa for health and dental insurance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after reviewing the insurance renewal quotations, the City Council 

has decided to accept the quotations, effective February 1, 2019. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa, that the insurance renewals with Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of 

Iowa are hereby approved.   

 

  Passed and approved this 19th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

       __________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Regarding the Level of “Tax Rebate” Support for 

the Little Light Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  November 16, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Whereas, the City of West Branch as one of its City Goals “Developing Inviting High 

Profile Visually Impactful Projects: Including Projects that Establish West Branch as a 

Destination; Involving Branding and Other Projects that Reflect Sound Use of Tax 

Dollars.   
 
Additionally, the City seeks to promote the public interest of assisting business interest 

grow employment opportunities, and industry productivity with its city limits.  Our efforts 

with developing MOU and working with Little Lights a local business has been successful 

in assisting Little Light with gaining commitment from Cedar Rapids Bank and Trust.  As 

we move forward with the next steps of establishing a Development Agreement and for 

purposes calculating the project appraisal (needed for financing) the level of Tax Rebate is 

important to firm up. 
 
Although, Little Light’s Events and Cedar’s Edge Golf Course will still be working 

closely, they no longer have a joint project.  Instead they will have separate facilities in 

close proximity.  The Little Lights Facility is currently budgeted at $1.5 million.  A 

project at that scale would involve percentages and dollar amounts as follows:  
 

7% - 
$105,000 

8% - 
$120,000 

9% - 
$135,000 

10% - 
$150,000 

11% - 
$165,000 

12% - 
$180,000 

13% - 
$195,000 

14% - 
$210,000 

15% - 
$225,000 

16% - 
$240,000 

17% - 
$255,000 

18% - 
$270,000 

19% - 
$285,000 

20% - 
$300,000 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
 
 



 

 

 

Submitted by Little Lights 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1748 – Consider Approving the Request of Acciona 

Windpower of North America, LLC to Rebate a Portion of Tax 

Increment Revenues. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  November 16, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The City entered into an agreement with Acciona, a manufacturer and installer of wind 

generation system, where Acciona expanded its business in West Branch in exchange for 

tax rebates.  After paying rebates for several years there was a dispute over job statistics (a 

term of the agreement).  The City ultimately cancelled the agreement. And a lawsuit ensued.  

The district court concluded the City was in breached of the contract and awarded Acciona 

compensatory damages for fiscal years 2013 and 2014.  However, desiring not to place the 

City in an economic down turn thus harming tax payers and citizens the courts gave the city 

the ability to forgo or deny such payments until such time said tax abatements are affordable 

for the city. 

 

The resolution considers such tax abated rebate; however, with debt service capacity well 

over 60% for additional financing, and inconsideration of other municipal budget issues.  It 

is Staff’s recommendation to deny this year’s annual consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Deny the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3  Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1748 

 

 

RESOLUTION CONSIDERING THE ISSUE OF WHETHER 

ACCIONA WINDPOWER NORTH AMERICA, LLC SHOULD BE 

REBATED A PORTION OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 2, 2008, the City and Acciona Windpower North America, LLC 

entered into an Agreement titled Amended Tax Increment Development Agreement By and Between 

the City of West Branch, Iowa and Acciona Windpower North America, L.L.C.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement contemplates performance of certain actions that may or must 

be performed by the parties to the Agreement; and 

  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, one action that may be performed under the 

Agreement is the payment, by the City, of “rebate” payments of “that percentage of incremental 

taxes actually paid with respect to” certain improvements to be made by Acciona “and received 

under Iowa Code Chapter (sic) 403.19 by the City;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, each of the possible rebate payments contemplated “shall be subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council;” and 

  

 WHEREAS, “[p]rior to December 1st of each year during the term” of the Agreement “the 

City Council shall consider the issue of obligating for appropriation to the funding of the payments 

due in the following fiscal year, an amount of tax increment revenues to be collected in the following 

fiscal year;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council is preparing to submit its annual certification “under Iowa 

Code section 403.19 to the Cedar County Auditor . . . the amount of taxes to be paid over the City 

and the amount,” if any, “obligated for appropriation for rebate to Acciona.” 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa that the Council has considered the issue of whether Acciona Windpower North 

America, LLC should be rebated a portion of tax increment revenues and this Council has concluded 

that the appropriation should occur for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 19th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1748 

 

 

RESOLUTION CONSIDERING THE ISSUE OF WHETHER 

ACCIONA WINDPOWER NORTH AMERICA, LLC SHOULD BE 

REBATED A PORTION OF TAX INCREMENT REVENUES 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 2, 2008, the City and Acciona Windpower North America, LLC 

entered into an Agreement titled Amended Tax Increment Development Agreement By and Between 

the City of West Branch, Iowa and Acciona Windpower North America, L.L.C.; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement contemplates performance of certain actions that may or must 

be performed by the parties to the Agreement; and 

  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, one action that may be performed under the 

Agreement is the payment, by the City, of “rebate” payments of “that percentage of incremental 

taxes actually paid with respect to” certain improvements to be made by Acciona “and received 

under Iowa Code Chapter (sic) 403.19 by the City;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, each of the possible rebate payments contemplated “shall be subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council;” and 

  

 WHEREAS, “[p]rior to December 1st of each year during the term” of the Agreement “the 

City Council shall consider the issue of obligating for appropriation to the funding of the payments 

due in the following fiscal year, an amount of tax increment revenues to be collected in the following 

fiscal year;” and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council is preparing to submit its annual certification “under Iowa 

Code section 403.19 to the Cedar County Auditor . . . the amount of taxes to be paid over the City 

and the amount,” if any, “obligated for appropriation for rebate to Acciona.” 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa that the Council has considered the issue of whether Acciona Windpower North 

America, LLC should be rebated a portion of tax increment revenues and this Council has concluded 

that the appropriation should occur for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 19th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 
 
 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1749 – A Consideration to Approve the Request of 

Casey’s Marketing Company to Rebate a Portion of Tax Increment 

Revenues.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar. Finance Director 

DATE:  November 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Resolution accepting the terms of a City Council approved Development Agreement. 

 

There has been extensive conversation regarding the standing of our contract with Casey’s 

and if Casey are in violation of their contractual obligation.  In an attempt to work with 

Casey in this regard a letter was sent to their corporate offices. 

 

In response Casey’s indicated an interest providing land to the city at no cost.  

Considering the success of development project that was incentivized and the proposal to 

have land donated to the city.  There is thought to continue with the previous contract 

(despite potential claims of breach) and honor the city’s obligations.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1749 

 

A CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE THE REQUEST OF CASEY’S 

MARKETING COMPANY TO REBATE A PORTION OF TAX INCREMENT 

REVENUES 

 

 
 

 *  *  *  * 

 

Passed and approved this 19th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution1752 – Obligating Funds from the Urban Renewal Tax 

Revenue Fund for the Payment of Annual Appropriation Tax 

Increment Financed Obligations in Fiscal Year 2020.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 16, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The City of West Branch, Iowa has adopted an Urban Renewal Plan that created a tax 

increment district as authorized by Chapter 403, State Code of Iowa and allowed for the 

creation of a special fund to pay for expenses related to the Urban Renewal Plan.  This 

document allows a municipality to incur indebtedness as it relates to the Urban Renewal 

Plan and requires a municipality to certify to the county auditor by December 1, the 

amount of indebtedness payable from the special fund of the municipality. This 

indebtedness is summarized on the attached certification form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 11 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1752 

 

A RESOLUTION OBLIGATING FUNDS FROM THE URBAN RENEWAL TAX 

REVENUE FUND FOR THE PAYMENT OF ANNUAL APPROPRIATION TAX 

INCREMENT FINANCED OBLIGATION IN FISCAL YEAR 2020 

 

 

 
 

* * * * * * 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 19th day of November, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1765 - Approving Change Order #6 For Cubby Park 

Improvements “Not To Exceed” $19,650.00 Unless Frost Is Found 

To Be Four Inches Deep Then Cost Will Be Enhanced By Time And 

Materials. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  November 15, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This change order for work at Cubby Park is recommended as ground water has been 

observed seeping from the hillside in the cut areas east of the pipeline and ponding on or 

near the parking lot near the pipelines. This will inhibit paving and potentially be an on-

going maintenance issue in that area of the park. The area has remained undisturbed for 

several weeks and is not improving. The tile route will follow the pipeline and/or base of 

the hill along the cemetery to intercept the ground water and outlet to the storm sewer 

without disturbing the parking lot paving. Temporary measures can then be taken to prevent 

the water from flowing onto the parking lot if the tile cannot be installed before that area is 

to be paved. 
 
The unit price from the previous tile installation along the north side of the ball fields 

($15/ft) shall be used unless frost is deeper than 4 inches. Deeper frost will slow down 

installation because the frost will have to be excavated with other machinery and take longer 

to install. If frost is found to be deeper than 4 inches, installation will be at time and 

materials.  
 
The exhibit included with the change order shows three options. These can be standalone or 

combined. Options 1 and 3 together are the longest but cover the most area. The change 

order is based on the cost of that combination. 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction – If project time permits staff 

recommends discussing which option is desired then having resolution presented next cycle.  
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 12 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1765 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #6 FOR CUBBY 

PARK IMPROVEMENTS “NOT TO EXCEED” $19,650.00 UNLESS 

FROST IS FOUND TO BE FOUR INCHES DEEP THEN COST WILL 

BE ENHANCED BY TIME AND MATERIALS. 

 
 WHEREAS, This change order for work at Cubby Park is recommended as ground water 

has been observed seeping from the hillside in the cut areas east of the pipeline and ponding on or 

near the parking lot near the pipelines; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this will inhibit paving and potentially be an on-going maintenance issue in 

that area of the park; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the area has remained undisturbed for several weeks and is not improving; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the tile route will follow the pipeline and/or base of the hill along the cemetery 

to intercept the ground water and outlet to the storm sewer without disturbing the parking lot paving; 

and 

  

 WHEREAS, temporary measures can then be taken to prevent the water from flowing onto 

the parking lot if the tile cannot be installed before that area is to be paved; and 

 

 WHEREAS, The unit price from the previous tile installation along the north side of the 

ball fields ($15/ft) shall be used unless frost is deeper than 4 inches; thus, deeper frost will slow 

down installation because the frost will have to be excavated with other machinery and take longer 

to install, and if frost is found to be deeper than 4 inches, installation will be at time and materials 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa that the Council has chosen Option _____________ and at $15 a linier foot the total 

will “not to exceed” 19,650.00.  In addition, if frost is found to be more than four inches deep cost 

to install tile will be at time and materials. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 19th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 


